
 
July 9, 2020 
 
 
Suzanne Johnson 
c/o Ed Francois 
128 W. Main Street 
Belleville WI 53508 
 

Subject: Case Closure under Wis. Admin. Code ch. NR 726 Not Recommended  
North Main Citgo, 25 N. Main St., Edgerton Wisconsin   
DNR BRRTS Activity # 03-54-176662  

 
Dear Ms. Johnson and Mr. Francois: 
 
On July 2, 2020, the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) reviewed the closure request for the case 
identified above. The DNR regional closure committees review environmental remediation cases for compliance 
with applicable laws, including Wis. Stat. ch. 292 and Wis. Admin. Code chs. NR 700–754 and whether any 
further threat to public health, safety or welfare or the environment exists at the site or facility, per Wis. Admin. 
Code § NR 726.13 (2) (b).  
 
As indicated to METCO, the project’s environmental consultant, by email on July 7, 2020, case closure is not 
recommended because additional legal requirements must be met. The purpose of this letter is to inform you of 
the remaining requirements for obtaining closure. 
 
Additional Requirements Needed for Case Closure Under Wis. Admin. Code ch. NR 726 
 
NR 726.05(6)(a) requires evidence that adequate source control measures were taken. NR 722 requires remedial 
action options be evaluated. We are asking that you provide the technical justification for not implementing an 
active remedial measure at the site.  
 
NR 726.05 (6)(a) also requires evidence that contaminant mass and concentrations have been reduced sufficiently 
by natural processes to protect human health and the environment. The estimated mass of contamination 
remaining should be determined from site investigation data per § NR 716.11(2r)(d), compared to earlier data, and 
used to determine if this criterion has been met.  
 
As new sample data becomes available, it is essential to update the explanation of site conditions (and the 
associated figures). Attachment C, section C-1 of the closure request indicated more complex layering of fine and 
coarse soils than previously presented; this is not represented on the cross-sections submitted. Does this additional 
soil information and the results of the LIF survey shed any light on the questions raised in the Department’s 
February 11, 2019 and February 20, 2020 letters (copies attached)? In your next submittal, incorporate this 
additional information, the answers to the questions in the Department letters, and updated cross-sections. 
 
Schedule  
Within 60 days of the date of this letter, respond in writing with a schedule of your plans to meet these 
requirements. Please submit a workplan and proposed schedule. 
 
Until requirements are met, your site will remain “open,” and you are required to submit semi-annual progress 
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reports, per Wis. Admin. Code § NR 700.11. You are also responsible for any operation and maintenance 
activities required under Wis. Admin. Code § NR 724.13. Once the additional work has been completed, 
documentation should be submitted to the DNR to demonstrate that the applicable requirements have been met, 
per the timelines above. 
 
Conclusion 
If you have any questions regarding the information in this letter or would like to schedule a meeting to discuss 
this case, please contact the DNR project manager, Cindy Koepke at 608-622-6741, 608-275-3257 (voice mail 
only while teleworking), or cynthia.koepke@wisconsin.gov.  
 
For more information on the closure reconsideration process, please see DNR publication, RR-102, “Wis. Admin. 
Code ch. NR 726 Case Closure Reconsideration Process” by visiting dnr.wi.gov, search: RR-102, for more 
information. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
for 

Steven L. Martin, P.G. 
South Central Region Team Supervisor 
Remediation & Redevelopment Program 
Telephone: 608-275-3310 
Email: stevenl.martin@wisconsin.gov 
 
 
Attachments:  February 11, 2019 letter 

February 20, 2020 letter 
 
Copies to: Jason Powell - METCO  
  Robert Cusick, 15 N. Main Street, Edgerton WI 53534 
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